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Gaither, Wayne
From: Horsting, Michael S.

Sent: Sunday, January 28, 2007 8:51 PM
To: Gaither, Wayne

Cc: Noble, Matthew A.

Subject: RE: CPA2006-00012 / North River Village Map and Text Amendment

Wayne,

We have no additional comments to add to what we have already addressed regarding creating a multi-
modal environment.

-Mike Horsting

From: Gaither, Wayne

Sent: Fri 1/26/2007 1:44 PM

To: tpnfmfd@yahoo.com; Bergquist, W.; Campbell, George G.; Collins, Donna Marie ; Daltry, Wayne E.;
Eckenrode, Peter J.; Hansen, Hans C.; Houck, Pamela E.; Lavender, James H.; Liddblad, Ellen; Loveland,
David M.; Horsting, Michael S.; Newman, William T.; Nygaard, James; Ottolini, Roland E.; Pavese,
Michael P.; Roberts, Rickey G.; Sampson, Lindsey J.; Smith, Regina Y.; Trebatoski, Kim; Velez, Sergio I.;
William Horner; Wilson, John; Wu, Lili ; Yarbrough, John H.; Zettel, Mary S.

Cc: Noble, Matthew A.

Subject: CPA2006-00012 / North River Village Map and Text Amendment

Distribution List:

John Wilson, Lee County Public Safety
Chris Hansen, Lee County Public Safety, EMS
Richard Cranford, Lee County Public Safety
Gerald Campbell, Lee County Public Safety, Emergency Management
W. Bergquist, Lee County Sheriff's Office
James Nygaard, Lee County Sheriff's Office
Roland E. Ottolini, Lee County Natural Resources Management
Kim Trebatoski, Lee County Environmental
Sciences
Michael Horsting, Lee Tran
Dave Loveland, Lee County Division of Transportation
Lili Wu, Lee County, Division of Transportation
John Yarbrough, Lee County Parks & Recreation
Lindsey Sampson, Lee County Solid Waste
William Newman, Lee County, Solid Waste
Regina Smith, Lee County Economic Development
Jim Lavender, Lee County Public Works
Ivan Velez, Lee County Utilities
Pam Houck, Lee County Zoning
Pete Eckenrode, Lee County Development Services
Michael Pavese, Lee County Public Works
Wayne Daltry, Lee County Smart Growth
Mary Zettel, DCD/Code Enforcement
Rick Roberts, DCD/Code Enforcement
Donna Marie Collins, County Attorney’s Office 2
Ellen Lidblad, Lee County School Board L1y ¢ i 1T}
William Horner, Airport Authority
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Terry Pye, North Fort Myers Fire Control and Rescue District

January 26, 2007
Public Service/Review Agencies

RE: CPA2006-00012 — North River Village (Map and Text Amendment)

Planning staff requests your agencies help in reviewing the above referenced Lee Plan
Amendment. The proposed map and text amendment would change the Land Use designation
from Rural to a new land use designation of North River Village. The site is generally 1263 acres
in size.

The applicant is proposing to amend the Future Land Use Map (FLUM), Map 1.

The existing Rural Land Use designation allows a density range of one (1) dwelling unit per acre
(1 du / acre). Under the existing land use designation it is estimated that 95 dwelling units could
be generated on this site. The Rural Land Use designation is anticipated to remain
predominately rural, with low density residential development and agricuitural uses. These are
areas not intended to receive urban type capital improvements.

The proposed land use designation of North River Village is written to create a land use category
to accommodate large areas of land (over 1,000 acres), a maximum of 3,000 dwelling units
including condo hotel units and 150,000 square feet of commercial.
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Planning staff requests that your agency help determine the sufficiency of the proposed plan
amendment application for review. If you can identify any deficiencies in the information
provided, need clarification on the subject matter, or if you find the application sufficient for
review, please provide these comments to us by February 12, 2007 (Approximately 2 weeks). A
letter is being drafted to submit any additional data requests to the applicant and your input
concerning the potential impacts to your agency is important.

A link to the application is below. If you have problems opening the attachment or if you have

any questions, please contact:
Matt Noble
479-8548
noblema@leegov.com

http://www.lee-county.com/dcd/PlanAmendments/PA2006-2007/CPA200612A1 .pdf
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Cunningham, Brent

From: Cunningham, Brent
Sent: Wednesday, April 04, 2007 12:31 PM
To: Loveland, David M.; Wu, Lili ; 'kfarreli@sheriffleefl.org’; Ottolini, Roland E.; Trebatoski, Kim; Yarbrough,

John H.; Smith, Regina Y.; Lavender, James H.; Houck, Pamela E.; Eckenrode, Peter J.;
'Susanmte@leeschools.net'; Velez, Sergio |.; 'wbhorner@flylcpa.com’; 'tpnfmfd@yahoo.com'’

Cc: Noble, Matthew A.
Subject: CPA2006-00012 North River Village Map and Text Amendment

If there are additional comments from your agencies regarding the above referenced Lee Plan
Amendment, please provide them. Thank you.

Brent Cunningham
Senior Planner

Lee County DCD
Division of Planning
phone: 239-479-8567
fax : 239-479-8319
bcunningham@leegov.com
www.lee-county.com

4/23/2007
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Cunningham, Brent

From: Horsting, Michael S.

Sent:  Thursday, April 05, 2007 10:37 AM
To: Cunningham, Brent

Subject: RE: Hey

With the pace of growth projected for Lee County and the potential the SR 31 corridor has for becoming a transit corridor
in the future, we requested the design and development of North River Village to include “transit ready” features. Such
features should include pedestrian walkways and bike ways internal to the project that will connect with the SR 31
corridor for future access to a transit system, as well as ROW and land preservation for future transit passenger
amenities. The standard grid system is much preferred for efficient transit service as apposed to the curved roads with
dead-ends and cul-de-sacs. Such items will facilitate easier access to public transportation and will allow for ease of
implementation of such service in the future.

Mike Horsting, AICP
Principal Planner - Lee County Transit
239-533-0333 tel

From: Cunningham, Brent

Sent: Wednesday, April 04, 2007 11:23 AM
To: Horsting, Michael S.

Subject: RE: Hey

Well at least things are good for now. In addition, I am reading an email dated 1/28/2007 regarding the
CPA2006-00012 North River Village Map and Text Amendment. You stated that LeeTran had no additional
comments to add to what you had already discussed regarding creating a multi-modal environment. What was
discussed in the previous emails? Please let me know when you get a chance. Thanks Michael.

Brent Cunningham
Senior Planner

Lee County DCD
Division of Planning
phone: 239-479-8567

fax : 239-479-8319
bcunningham@leegov.com
www.lee-county.com

From: Horsting, Michael S.

Sent: Wednesday, April 04, 2007 11:13 AM
To: Cunningham, Brent

Subject: RE: Hey

She's doing better now, thanks. We got a call early Saturday morning that she was at work and having a stroke. She
spent three days in the hospital, went home yesterday and should be able to go back to work sometime next week.
There's just this new fear now; once you're a stroke victim the chances of future strokes increases.

Mike Horsting, AICP
Principal Planner - Lee County Transit
239-533-0333 tel

From: Cunningham, Brent
Sent: Wednesday, April 04, 2007 9:23 AM
To: Horsting, Michael S.

4/5/2007
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Cunningham, Brent

From:
Sent:
To:

Cc:
Subject:

4/23/2007

Cunningham, Brent
Friday, April 13, 2007 3:19 PM

'tpnfmfd@yahoo.com'; ‘kfarrell@sheriffleefl.org.’; Campbell, George G.; Collins, Donna Marie ; Daltry,
Wayne E.; Eckenrode, Peter J.; Hansen, Hans C.; Houck, Pamela E., Lavender, James H.; Loveland,
David M.; Newman, William T.; Ottolini, Roland E.; Pavese, Michael P.; Roberts, Rickey G.; Sampson,
Lindsey J.; Smith, Regina Y.; Trebatoski, Kim; Velez, Sergio |.; Wilson, John; Wu, Lili; Yarbrough, John H.;
Zettel, Mary S.; 'Susanmte@leeschools.net’; Horsting, Michael S.

Noble, Matthew A.
CPA2006-00012 North River Village Map and Text Amendment

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
W. Bergquist, Lee County Sheriff’s Office

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

Ivan Velez, Lee County Ulilities

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

Donna Marie Collins, County Attorney’s Office

Ellen Lidblad, Lee County School Board

William Horner, Airport Authority

Terry Pye, North Fort Myers Fire Control and Rescue District

Public Service/Review Agencies
RE: CPA2006-00012 — North River Village (Map and Text Amendment)
Planning staff requests your agencies help in reviewing the above referenced Lee Plan Amendment. The

proposed map and text amendment would change the Land Use designation from Rural to a new land use
designation of North River Village. The site is generally 1263 acres in size.

The applicant is proposing to amend the Future Land Use Map (FLUM), Map 1.

The existing Rural Land Use designation allows a density range of one (1) dwelling unit per acre (1 du /
acre). Under the existing land use designation, it is estimated that 95 dwelling units could be generated on
this site. The Rural Land Use designation is anticipated to remain predominately rural, with low-density
residential development and agricultural uses. These are areas not intended to receive urban type capital
improvements.



Page 2 of 3
The proposed land use designation of North River Village is written to create a land use category to

accommodate large areas of land (over 1,000 acres), a maximum of 3,000 dwelling units including condo
hotel units and 150,000 square feet of commercial.

4/23/2007
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Planning staff requests that your agency help determine the sufficiency of the proposed plan amendment
application for review. If you can identify any deficiencies in the information provided, need clarification on the
subject matter, or if you find the application sufficient for review, please provide these comments to us by April
23, 2007. A letter is being drafted to submit any additional data requests to the applicant and your input
concerning the potential impacts to your agency is important.

A link to the application is below. If you have problems opening the attachment or if you have any questions,

please contact:
Matt Noble

479-8548
noblema@leegov.com

http://www.lee-county.com/dcd/PlanAmendments/PA2006-2007/CPA200612A1.pdf

Brent Cunningham
Senior Planner

Lee County DCD
Division of Planning
phone: 239-479-8567
fax : 239-479-8319
bcunningham@leegov.com
www.lee-county.com




Page 1 of 3

Cunningham, Brent

From:
Sent:
To:

Cc:
Subject:

Newman, William T.

Monday, April 16, 2007 8:39 AM

Cunningham, Brent

Noble, Matthew A.

RE: CPA2006-00012 North River Village Map and Text Amendment

Attachments: North River Village{(Comm and Res).doc .

4/23/2007

Brent:
Please find my attached letter dated September 29, 2006 which was in response to a request by Debbie
Strach of DelLisi Fitzgerald. Delisi Fitzgerald included their request letter in their submittal, but didn’t include

my response.

Bill Newman
Operations Manager
Solid Waste Division
(239)338-3302
newmanwt(@leegov.com

From: Cunningham, Brent

Sent: Friday, April 13, 2007 3:19 PM

To: tpnfmfd@yahoo.com; kfarrell@sheriffleefl.org.; Campbell, George G.; Collins, Donna Marie ; Daltry,
Wayne E.; Eckenrode, Peter J.; Hansen, Hans C.; Houck, Pamela E.; Lavender, James H.; Loveland, David M.;
Newman, William T.; Ottolini, Roland E.; Pavese, Michael P.; Roberts, Rickey G.; Sampson, Lindsey J.; Smith,
Regina Y.; Trebatoski, Kim; Velez, Sergio I.; Wilson, John; Wu, Lili ; Yarbrough, John H.; Zettel, Mary S.;
Susanmte@leeschools.net; Horsting, Michael S.

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

http://www.lee-county.com/dcd/PlanAmendments/PA2006-2007/CPA200612A1 . pdf

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

From: Daltry, Wayne E.

Sent:  Tuesday, April 24, 2007 10:10 AM

To: Cunningham, Brent

Subject: RE: CPA2006-00012 North River Village Map and Text Amendment

Good morning Brent:
My apologies for being a day late in responding but | was on the road from the 13! to the 23,

| have previously met with agents of the applicant, and | have no doubt that an internally consistent project
can be developed, with the relevant input on content, design, and timing. | told them the big issue | saw was
that there was no real county “need” for the project at this time, due to the population forecasts and
distribution just reviewed and adopted by the Lee MPO. This same distribution is before the Board in its
current review of the EAR based plan amendments. Given the guidance that population distribution and
growth drives our concurrency based system, there would need to be a reconsideration of the forecasts for

Alva,
In regard to the topic before us, | have the following comments:

1. "Out parcels.” The configuration of the ownership has “out parcels” which will be future problems unless
they are brought in within at least a common sector plan. Current allocations by land use do not create that
problem, but the reallocation of density ~or creation of new density—to this project while overlooking the
others belies a systematic review of land use need.

2. “Sector Planning” In the context of the comment above, and the various agreements concerning the
property formerly known as Babcock Ranch, we can forecast that land use proposals reviewed separately will
not encompass the service needs if reviewed collectively. If population forecasts are redistributed, or newly
created, the overall area should be reviewed for the aggregate demand before any individual approval is
given. There is statutory guidance for this approach.

3. Existing Community Plans. Alva has proposed a truncated community plan for the smaller Alva
community area, which is a subportion of the area designated in the Lee Plan as the Alva Community.
Bayshore and Fort Myers Shores have approved community plans. Any proposed change to the FLUM and
Plan should be reviewed for impacts on the two adopted plans, and at least be reviewed for whether the Alva
Plan would create inconsistencies.

Wayne Daltry, FAICP
Director, Smart Growth
239-335-2840

fx -335-2262

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
Regina Y.; Trebatoski, Kim; Velez, Sergio 1.; Wilson, John; Wu, Lili ; Yarbrough, John H.; Zettel, Mary S.;
Susanmte@Ileeschools.net; Horsting, Michael S.

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

4/24/2007
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

http://www.lee-county.com/dcd/PlanAmend ments/PA2006-2007/CPA200612A1 .pdf

Brent Cunningham
Senior Planner

Lee County DCD
Division of Planning
phone: 239-479-8567
fax : 239-479-8319
bcunningham@leegov.com
www.lee-county.com
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Insufficiency Letter for
CPA2006-12

a Recycled Paper

(239) 479-8567
June 27, 2007

Mr. Daniel DeLisi, AICP
1500 Royal Palm Square Blvd., Suite 101
Fort Myers, FL 33919

RE: CPA2006-12, North River Village Large Scale Plan Amendment
Dear Mr. DelLisi,

The Planning Division has reviewed your application for the above-referenced Lee Plan
amendment and finds that additional information is needed before the application may be
found sufficient for review.

The following comments pertain to Part I of the application

Planning staff needs clarification regarding the owners of records for several parcels.
According to the Lee County Property Appraiser property detail information included in
section two (Property Owners) of the application materials, there are several properties
that have outdated property owners. For example: parcel formerly owned by Thirty Nine
Preserve Inc. (18-43-26-00-00001.0000), parcel formerly owned by Michael & Tracey
Greenwell (18-43-26-00-00001.0010) , parcels formerly owned by Talon Ventures LLC
(18-43-26-00-00002.0020, 18-43-26-00-00002.0000, 19-43-26-00-00002.1020), parcel
formerly owned by George Thompson (20-43-26-00-0001.0070), parcel formerly owned
by Alfredo & Patricia Savigne (20-43-26-00-00001.0080) and parcels formerly owned by
Riverhaven Trust (19-43-26-00-00005.0030, 19-43-26-00-00006.0010, 19-43-26-00-
00006.0040, 19-43-26-00-00006.0060, 19-43-26-00-00006.0050, 19-43-26-00-
00006.0070 & 19-43-26-00-00006.0030). Recently North River LLC has purchased
these properties. Please provide updated deeds reflecting these purchases. ’

The following comments pertain to Part IV of the application:

A.l.
(1.) Please provide a Future Urban Area Descriptor Policy for this proposed plan
amendment request.

June 27, 2007
Page 1 of 9
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(2.) Planning staff introduced a Floor Area Ratio (FAR) of 1 as an index of intensity that
was included in the newly adopted Commercial Land Use category (CPA2005-00039).
The FAR method sets a maximum floor area making development consistent throughout
the land use category. FAR is calculated by dividing the total floor area (square feet) of
the building by the total area (square feet) of the lot. Planning staff believes that DCA
will require this of all new land use categories. Please include Policy language that
discusses FAR for the proposed plan amendment request.

A.6
Please submit all updated deeds for the subject amendment parcels.

B.1.

Long Range-20-year horizon

B.1.a.

Please identify the Traffic Analysis Zones (TAZs) for this proposed plan amendment
request. ’

B.1.b.

(1.) Please determine whether the requested change requires a modification to the socio-
economic data forecasts for the host zone or zones. The land uses for the proposed
change should be expressed in the same format as the socio-economic forecasts (number
of units by type/number of employees by type/etc.).

Please provide an existing and future conditions analysis for sanitary sewer and potable
water, that includes that includes (but is not limited to) the following:

. Franchise Area, Basin, or District in which the property is located;

. Current LOS, and LOS standard of facilities serving the site;

. Projected 2020 LOS under existing designation,

. Projected 2020 LOS under proposed designation;

. Improvements/expansions currently programmed in 5 year CIP, 6-10 year CIP,
long range improvements and

. Anticipated revisions to the Community Facilities and Services Element and/or
Capital Improvements Element (state if these revisions are included in this
amendment).

(2.) The applicant did not indicate if an amendment is proposed for Future Water Service
Areas (Map 6) and Future Sewer Areas ( Map 7) for the amendment request. In addition,
the applicant stated that North Fort Myers Utilities will be providing wastewater service
and Lee County utilities will be providing water service to the subject amendment
parcels. Is an amendment proposed to Map 6 and Map 7 for the proposed project? How
will potable water and sanitary sewer service be provided to the site? Is the applicant
proposing a facility onsite? Please clarify.

Insufficiency Letter for June 27, 2007
CPA2006-12 Page 2 of 9



(3.) Lee County Utilities provided an email dated June 20, 2007 including the following
comments:

We intend to provide wastewater service to the project. The applicant should
provide a location for a regional wastewater plant. '

Please address the Lee County Utilities comment. R
(4.) The applicant in a recent a meeting held on June 14, 2007 with Matt Noble, Brent
Cunningham, Daniel DeLisi, Margaret Emblidge stated that a golf course is proposed for
the North River Village Area. If a golf course is proposed, please provide Policy language

~ that includes the design, construction, management and certification in accordance with
the Audubon International Signature Program standard.

B.3

Lee County Division of Transportation provided a memo dated March 20, 2007 including

the following comments:
The property is located within TAZ 1289 in Lee County MPO 2030 FSUTMS
model. For the analysis, a new TAZ (TAZ316) was created by the applicant to
analyze the proposed change would have on the 2030 Financially Feasible Plan
as adopted by the Lee Plan County MPO. 1,470 single family dwelling units, 630
multi-family dwelling units and 900 condominium
hotel units were added in zdata 1 of TAZ, 316,300 commercial employees and
110 service employees were added in zdata 2 and rerun 2030 FSTUMS model by
applicant. It is reported that projected 2030 traffic conditions under the 2030
Financially-Feasible plan without and with the proposed CPA indicate the 4 lane
segment of SR 80 between SR 31 and Tropic Ave are expected to exceed the
adopted LOS standard. The section of SR 90 west of SR 31 also exceeds the
adopted LOS standard without and with the CPA. The section of SR 31 between
SR 78 and the proposed project entrance is expected to exceed the adopted LOS
standard with the proposed CPA.

The above findings of the applicant’s traffic study are not based on a worse case
condition. Since single family has a higher trip generation rate than multi-family
and condominium and the applicant requests to allow for 3,000 units, a worse

- case of assuming 3,000 single family units shall be conducted for the traffic study.
Additionally, the traffic information on SR 31 north of SR 80 is associated with
Permanent Station # 5 which is located on SR 80 west of SR 31. However, the
applicant used the data of Permanent Station # 4 (on Bayshore Rd west of
Williamsburg) for SR 31 north of SR 80. The traffic study shall be revised to study
a worse case and the data of Permanent Station # 5 shall be used for SR 31 north
of SR 80.

Insufficiency Letter for June 27, 2007
CPA2006-12 ‘ : Page 3 of 9



Please address the Lee County Department of Transportation comments.

Lee County Department of Smart Growth provided an email memo dated January 29,
2007 including the following comments:

1. The CR 78 corridor and SR 31 corridor should not be defined by applicant

initiated amendments but instead by a master plan. The current LeePlan is the
county wide master plan, and the opportunity exists for community and
subcommunity based plans to be developed as further detailed evaluation of the
Countywide approach. For this area, such a plan should define the capacity of
the roads as area, aid as can be expanded without violating their effectiveness;
that defines the watershed and the water budget that must be maintained by land
alterations, and the pollution load reduction expected of most watershed, as well
as any groundwater storage targets; and, addresses similar system driven
components of public infrastructure.

2. The population forecasts of the County are presumed to be accommodated by
the approved developments in the different planning districts. I am unaware of
any outside analysis that indicate a shortcoming in the planning district this is
within that would require additional population . Without such analysis the CIP
response is likely to suffer additional delays, since this is not a small project.
(This concern reinforces point 1 above). I note the applicant is raising issues that
the forecasts used by the County are inappropriate, but the place to challenge
these forecasts would be in a particular plan section, not in a land use map
change that doesn’t include a change of the forecast in the appropriate section of
the Plan.

3. The proposed change seems to create a new future land use category that is
apparently application to just this site. The proposal underlines the problem
previously faced by other projects that have their own category. The greater
problem is the need for a land use category wherein the subsequent processes of
land use change, zoning, site design, building form, and building review/COs are
integrated to achieve a particular vision. The somewhat jury rigging of the DRI
process has promoted that in the past, and land use reviews did promote some
flexibility. If the issues in points I and 2 above are resolved, then the need to
have projects such as this * covered” by an integrated program is required.
Rather than the developer initiated category " category”, a more inclusive
approach should be developed and provided. The current * Mixed Use” concept
‘should be assessed to see if the “Village” basic theme is met by such an
approach.

Insufficiency Letter for June 27, 2007
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4. Integration of land uses with adjacent parcels. This point emphasizes part of
the issue 1 above. The project is one that has been assembled from diverse
ownerships. The resulting geometric has “outparcels” and somewhat angular
interfaces with adjacent properties. There needs to be adequate mobility access
and natural system continuation regardless of ownerships to ensure system
performance.

Please address the Department of Smart Growth comments.

B.3.a.

Please provide a letter from the Bayshore Fire & Rescue and North Fort Myers Fire
Department determining the adequacy/provision of existing or proposed support facilities.

B.3.b.

(1.) Lee County Division of Public Safety Emergency Management Program provided a
memo dated January 29, 2007 including the following comments:

Emergency Management reviewed the documents for the above-referenced
amendment. This request appears to allow a density increase from 997 dwelling
units (under current) to 3,000 dwelling units (under proposed). Most of this
property is located in a Tropical Strom surge zone.

Lee County Public Safety and Emergency Management remain fundamentally
opposed to increasing density in the Coastal High Hazard Area. Increased
density in the Coastal High Hazard Area places more people at risk and increases
demand on already strained shelters and evacuation routes.

POLICY 5.1.2.: Prohibits residential development where physical constraints or
hazards exist, or requires the density and design to be adjusted accordingly.

This request to increase density in the Coastal High Hazard Area is inconsistent
with Policy 5.1.2.

POLICY 105.1.4.: Through the Lee Plan amendment process, land use
designations of undeveloped areas within coastal high hazard areas will be
considered for reduced density categories (or assignment of minimum allowable
densities where density ranges area permitted) in order to limit the future
population exposed to coastal flooding.

This request to increase density in the Coastal High Hazard Area is inconsistent
with Policy 105.1.4.

Please address the Lee County Division of Public Safety Emergency Management
Program comments.

Insufficiency Letter for June 27, 2007
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(2.) Please provide a letter from the Lee County Emergency Medical Services (EMS)
determining the adequacy/provision of existing or proposed support facilities.

Lee County Transit provided a memo dated September 25, 2006 including the following
the comments:

We currently do not provide transit service to this area north of the
Calossahatchee River, nor have we identified the capacity with which to do so in
the future. The nearest transit service is approximately 2 miles south on Palm
Beach Boulevard, SR 80.

Transit service on SR 31 north of the river has not been identified as a need in
either the Lee County Transit Development Plan or in the Lee County Long
Range Transportation Plan. However, with the pace of gr owth projected for Lee
County and the potential the SR 31 corridor has for becoming a transit corr idor
in the future we request the design and development of North River Village to
include “ transit ready”’ feature. Such features should include pedestrian
walkways and bike ways internal to the project that will connect with the SR 31
corridor for the future transit passenger amenities. Such items will facilitate
easier access to public transportation and will allow for ease of implementation
of such services in the future.

Please address the Lee County Transit comments.

B.3.e.
Please provide a letter from the Lee County School Board determining the
adequacy/provision of existing or proposed support facilities.

C.1.
(1.) Lee County Division of Environmental Sciences provided an email dated June 15,
2007 including the following comments:

. Policy 1.10.3. should require the public access for canoes and Kayaks. The
way the policy is currently written a promenade in conjunction with say a
public restaurant may meet the requirements.

. Policy 1.10.6 should be revised to established minimum buffers areas along
the creeks and restoration of native plant communities. The placement of
any buildings within the creek buffer area should be prohibited. T here may
be some structures such as a pervious path or boardwalk that may be
appropriate, but we will need to discuss this further. Afier the BocCcC
meeting last week, I would recommend a 50-foot wide natural waterway
buffer. We will need some help from Natural Resources staff to determine
the most appropriate width of no impacts (‘e.g. filling or grading) from a

Insufficiency Letter for June 27, 2007
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flood protections standpoint. There should also be a minimum 20-foot
building, pool, accessory structure, and pavement setback from the natural
waterway buffer as well.

. Policy 1.10.7 should be revised to include listed species.

. Policy 1.10.8 should be revised to establish clustering criteria and how
functional common open space will be included in the design.

. There should be a policy added that addresses the use of a lazge ioadway
buffer that utilizes 100 % native species to NE Lee County, prohibits the use
of berm, wall or fence, and includes a multi-use trail or path.

. There should be a policy added that addresses an enlarged natural
waterway buffer along the Calossahatchee River.

e There should be a policy added limiting the amount of lake excavation to the
minimum necessary to provide surface water management, and maximizing
the best management practices such as filter marsh and created flow-ways
(i.e. meandering naturalized swales) to lower the amount of lake excavation
required.

e There should be a policy added to require a higher percentage of native
vegetation than is required by the LDC for required landscaping, as well as,
committing to a limitation on the use of non-native vegetation to non-
invasive, low water, and low fertilizer plants.

e There should be a policy added regarding limitations on lawns. Whether the
percentage of the lot or a limitation on the type of a sod used.

«  The proposed future land use map should delineate the large tracts of
proposed conservation area including the preserved or restored flow-ways.

(2.) Is the applicant, proposing to place environmentally sensitive areas of the
subject amendment site into the Conservation Lands Wetlands Future Land Use
category? Please clarify.

Please address the Lee County Division of Environmental Sciences email
comments. '

D.1.
Please provide a map of any historic districts and/or sites , listed on the Florida
- Master Site File, which are located on the subject property or adjacent properties.

D.2.
Please provide a map showing the subject property location on the archeological
sensitivity map for Lee County.

Insufficiency Letter for June 27, 2007
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E.l.
Please address the 2030 allocations for commercial and residential uses in the
Alva Planning community per CPA2005-00026 revised Table 1(b).

E.2. :
(1.) Please list all goals and objectives of the Lee Plan that are affected by the
proposed amendment.

This analysis should include an evaluation of all relevant policies under each goal
and objective.
(2.) According to the proposed Policy 1.10.5, development within the North River
Village will be required to accept reuse water if the utility is prepared to supply
reuse water and a sufficient supply is available to meet all or a portion of the
irrigation needs of the proposed development. In response to the state objectives
in Section 373.250 and Section 403.064, Florida Statutes (F.S.), of “encouraging
and promoting uses,” the Florida Department of Environmental Protection has
developed a comprehensive reuse program. The Department has created
extensive rules dealing with water reuse which are contained in Chapter 52-610,
Florida Administrative Code. In addition, there are water reuse requirements per
Policy 54.1.6 and Chapter 10 of the Land Development Code. Will the water
reuse system meet these requirements? Please clarify.

E.3.
(1.) Please describe how the proposal affects adjacent local governments and their

comprehensive plans

(2.) According to the application the applicant is proposing 3,000 dwelling units.
But according to recent submitted text amendment language (Policy 1.10,10),
development within the North River Village property will be limited to 2,500
residential units. Please clarify the number of dwelling units that are proposed for
the project.

F.1.a.
The application provides no measure of intensity or FAR for the proposed

commercial component of this plan amendment. According to the application,
150, 000 sq. ft. of commercial is proposed but there is no measure of-intensity
language provided in the text amendment. Planning staff needs this information to
determine the impacts the proposed development will generate. Please provide
language that discuss measure of intensity for the proposed commercial
component of this amendment. In addition, please state whether the site is
accessible to arterial roadways, rail lines, and cargo airport terminals.

Insufficiency Letter for June 27, 2007
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F.1.b.
Please provide data and analysis required by Policy 2.4.4 of the Lee Plan.

F.2.a.
(1.) How does this justify the proposed plan amendment request being in

compliance with Objective 2.2: Development Location & Timing of the Lee Plan?
Please clarify. ‘

(2.) Please demonstrate why the proposed change does nof constitute Urban
Sprawl. In addition, please supply data and analysis specifically addressing the
urban sprawl criteria listed in FAC Rule 97 5.006(5)(g), (h), (I) and (j).

G.
(1.) It may be to the applicant’s advantage to provide a conceptual site design due

to the size and scope of this proposed plan amendment request that affects 1,263 +
acres of land.

(2.) Most residential, commercial, industrial, and public development is expected
to occur within the designated Future Urban Areas on the Future Land Use Map
per Policy 2.1.1 of the Lee Plan New growth should be directed to those portions
of the Future Urban Areas where adequate public facilities exist or are assured and
where compact and contiguous development patterns can be created per Objective
2.2: Development Timing of the Lee Plan, GOAL 11, Policy 39.1.6, Policy
43.1.6, and Objective 43.2. In addition to the above mentioned items, staff has
concerns with the premature nature of the request, and questions whether the
request could be approved as proposed.

If T can be of any assistance or if you have any questions, please do not hesitate to
call me at 479-8316.

Sincerely,

e
ffw/fs;) Planner

epartment of Community Development, Division of Planning

Attachments (comments from): Lee County Division of Public Safety, EMS
Lee County Utilities
Lee County Department of Transportation
Lee County Division of Environmental Sciences
Lee County Smart Growth

Insufficiency Letter for June 27, 2007
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Interoffice Memo

Date:  January 29, 2007

To:  Wayne Gaither
Lee County Community Development Planning Department

From: Gerald Campbell
Chief of Planning
Lee County Division of Public Safety
Emergency Management Program

RE: CPA2006-00012 — North River Village (Map and Text Amendment)

Emergency Management reviewed the documents for the above-referenced amendment.
This request appears to allow a density increase from 997 dwelling units (under current)
to 3000 dwelling units (under proposed). Most of this property is located in a Tropical
Storm surge zone.

Lee County Public Safety and Emergency Management remain fundamentally opposed to
increasing density in the Coastal High Hazard Area. Increased density in the Coastal
High Hazard Area places more people at risk and increases demand on already strained
shelters and evacuation routes.

Specific Objectives and Policies are addressed below.

POLICY 5.1.2: Prohibits residential development where physical constrains or hazards
exist, or requires the density and design to be adjusted accordingly.

This request to increase density in the Coastal High Hazard Area is inconsistent
with Policy 5.1.2.

POLICY 105.1.4: Through the Lee Plan amendment process, land use designations of
undeveloped areas within coastal high hazard areas will be considered for reduced
density categories (or assignment of minimum allowable densities where density ranges
are permitted) in order to limit the future population exposed to coastal flooding.

This request to increase density in the Coastal High Hazard Area is inconsistent
with Policy 105.1.4.



These comments do not address requirements for shelter and evacuation mitigation under the
Land Development Code or Emergency Preparedness Plan requirements under Administrative
Code 7-7, which will apply to any development in this location.

cc: J. D. Wilson, Lee county Public Safety
D. J. Saniter, Lee County Emergency Management

T. M. Kelley, Lee County Emergency Management
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Cunningham, Brent

From: Wegis, Howard S.

Sent: Wednesday, June 20, 2007 4:04 PM

To: Cunningham, Brent

Cc: Noble, Matthew A.; Velez, Sergio |.; Meurer, Douglas L.

Subject: RE: CPA2006-12 North River Village Large Scale Plan Amendment

| agree that the applicant will need to amend map 6 and 7. We intend to provide wastewater service to the
project. The applicant should provide a location for a regional wastewater plant.

Howard S. Wegis

Staff Engineer .
Lee County Utilities

P.O. Box 398

Fort Myers, FL 33901

Phone#: (239) 479-8163

Fax#: (239) 479-8176

From: Cunningham, Brent

Sent: Thursday, June 14, 2007 2:57 PM

To: Wegis, Howard S.

Cc: Noble, Matthew A,

Subject: CPA2006-12 North River Village Large Scale Plan Amendment

The applicant did not indicate if an amendment is proposed for Future Water
Service Areas (Map 6) and Future Sewer Areas (Map 7) for the amendment
request. In addition, the applicant stated that North Fort Myers Utilities will be
providing wastewater service and Lee County utilities will be providing water
service to the subject amendment parcels via the new water treatment plant on
Durance Road. What is your opinion on this matter? Should the applicant
provide a regional wastewater treatment plant on are near the proposed project
area? Are there additional concerns? Below is the link to the proposed plan

amendment. .
http://www.lee-countv.com/dcd/PlanAmendments/PA2006-2007/CPA200612A1.pdf

Planning staff would greatly appreciate your input. Thank you.

Brent Cunningham
Senior Planner

Lee County DCD
Division of Planning
phone: 239-479-8567
fax : 239-479-8319
becunningham@leegov.com
www.lee-county.com

6/20/2007



To: Paul O’Connor, Division of Planning
From: David Loveland

Date: March 20, 2007

Re: CPA2006-00012 (North River Village)

We have reviewed the traffic study prepared by the applicant for the above application
which requests that the land use designation of approximately 1,253 acres be changed
from the existing “Rural” to a proposed new category called “North River Village”. The
applicant indicates that the proposed “North River Village” designation would allow for a
maximum of 3,000 dwelling units and 150,000 square feet commercial uses on the
property. The property is within TAZ 1289 in Lee County MPO 2030 FSUTMS model.
For this analysis, a new TAZ (TAZ316) was created by the applicant to analyze the
proposed change would have on the 2030 Financially Feasible Plan as adopted by the Lee
County MPO. 1,470 single family dwelling units, 630 multi-family dwelling units and
900 ¢ondominium hotel units were added in zdata 1 of TAZ 316, 300 commercial
employees and 110 service employees were added in zdata 2 and rerun 2030 FSUTMS
model by applicant. It is reported that projected 2030 traffic conditions under the 2030
Financially-Feasible plan without and with the proposed CPA indicate the 4 lane segment
of SR 80 between SR 31 and Tropic Ave are expected to exceed the adopted LOS
standard. The section of SR 90 west of SR 31 also exceeds the adopted LOS standard
without and with the CPA. The section of SR 31 between SR 78 and the proposed project
entrance is expected to exceed the adopted LOS standard with the proposed CPA.

The above findings of applicant’s traffic study are not based on a worse case condition.
Since single family has a higher trip generation rate than multi-family and condominium
and the application requests to allow for 3,000 units, a worse case of assuming 3,000
single family units shall be conducted for the traffic study. Additionally, the traffic
information on SR 31 north of SR 80 is associated with the Permanent Station #5 which
is located on SR 80 west of SR 31. However, the applicant used the data of Permanent
Station #4 (on Bayshore Rd west of Williamsburg) for SR 31 north of SR 80. The traffic
study shall be revised to study a worse case and the data of Permanent Station #5 shall be
used for SR 31 north of SR 80.
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Cunningham, Brent

From: Trebatoski, Kim

Sent: Friday, June 15, 2007 3:10 PM

To: Cunningham, Brent; Noble, Matthew A.

Subject: RE: CPA2006-12 North River Village Large Scale Plan Amendment

Some additional comments and thoughts from ES staff.

e Policy 1.10.3 should require the public access for canoes and kayaks. The way the policy is currently
written a promenade in conjunction with say a public restaurant may meet the requirements.

e Policy 1.10.6 should be revised to establish minimum buffer areas along the creeks and restoration of
native plant communities. The placement of any buildings within the creek buffer area should be .
prohibited. There may be some structures such as a pervious path or boardwalk that may be
appropriate, but we will need to discuss this further. After the BOCC meeting last week, | would
recommend at least a 50-foot wide natural waterway buffer. We will need some help from Natural
Resources staff to determine the most appropriate width of no impacts (e.g. filling or grading) from a
flood protection standpoint. There should also be a minimum 20-foot building, pool, accessory
structure, and pavement setback from the natural waterway buffer as well.

e Policy 1.10.7 shouild be revised to include listed species.

e Policy 1.10.8 should be revised to establish clustering criteria and how functional common open space
will be included in the design.

e There should be a policy added that addresses the use of a large roadway buffer that utilizes 100%
native species to NE Lee County; prohibits the use of berm, wall or fence; and includes a multi-use trail
or path.

e There should be a policy added that addresses an enlarged natural waterway buffer along the
Caloosahatchee River.

e There should be a policy added limiting the amount of lake excavation to the minimum necessary to
provide surface water management, and maximizing the use the best management practices such as
filter marsh and created flow-ways (i.e. meandering naturalized swales) to lower the amount of lake

excavation required.

e There should be a policy added to require a higher percentage of native vegetation than is required by
the LDC for required landscaping, as well as, committing to a limitation on the use of non-native
vegetation to non-invasive, low water, and low fertilizer plants.

e There should be a policy added regarding limitations on lawns. Whether this is a percentage of the lot
or a limitation on the type of sod used.

e The proposed future land use map should delineate the large tracts of proposed conservation area
including the preserved or restored flow-ways.

Please let me know if you need this in a more refined form. These items are most definitely substantive, but
wanted to get some ideas out there.

Kim Trebatoski

Principal Environmental Planner

Lee County Division of Environmental Sciences
(239)479-8183

trebatkm@leegov.com - -

Fax: (239)479-8144

http://www.lee-county.com

From: Cunningham, Brent

Sent: Thursday, June 14, 2007 3:12 PM

To: Trebatoski, Kim

Cc: Noble, Matthew A.

Subject: CPA2006-12 North River Village Large Scale Plan Amendment

Kim,

6/15/2007



Gaither, Wayne

From: Daltry, Wayne E.

Sent: Monday, January 29, 2007 11:17 AM

To: Gaither, Wayne

Subject: RE: CPA2006-00012 / North River Village Map and Text Amendment

Good Morning

| did have problems getting the whole report to “boot up.” From the parts | gleaned‘i”"‘tﬁg;ugh, the following
comments seem appropriate: )

The greater parts of my comments are about the context of the application, andgthej,rest reflect the
application itself. The cover note sent out though, indicates 950 (plus) units arg capable, a digit got
misplaced when it noted 95" units. ‘

1. The CR 78 corridor and SR 31 corridor should not be defined by applicantinitigted amendments,. biit
instead by a master plan. The current LeePlan is the county wide master plaf, and the opportunjfy,.'e_)gsts
for community and subcommunity based plans to be developed as further detailed evaluation of the ¥
Countywide approach. For this area, such a plan should define the capacity of the roads as are, and as
can be expanded without violating their effectiveness; that defines the watershed and the water budget
that must be maintained by land alterations, and the pollution load reduction expected of most watershed,
as well as any groundwater storage targets; and, addresses similar system driven components of public
infrastructure.

2. The population forecasts of the County are presumed to be accommodated by the approved
developments in the different planning districts. | am unaware of any outside analysis that indicate a
shortcoming in the planning district this is within that would require additional population. Without such
analysis the CIP response is likely to suffer additional delays, since this is not a small project. (This
concern reinforces point 1 above). | note the applicant is raising issues that the forecasts used by the
County are inappropriate, but the place to challenge these forecasts would be that particular plan section,
not in a land use map change that doesn't include a change of the forecast in the appropriate section of
the Plan. '

3. The proposed change seems to create a new future land use category that is apparently applicable to
just this site. The proposal underlines the problem previously faced by other projects that have their own
category. The greater problem is the need for a land use category wherein the subsequent processes of
land use change, zoning, site design, building form, and building review/COs are integrated to achieve a
particular vision. The somewhat jury rigging of the DRI process has promoted that in the past, and land
use reviews did provide some flexibility. If the issues in points 1 and 2 above are resolved, then the need
to have projects such as this “covered” by an integrated program is required. Rather than the developer
initiated “category,” a more inclusive approach should be developed and provided. The current “Mixed
Use” concept should be assessed to see if the “Village” basic theme is met by such an approach.

4. Integration of land uses with adjacent parcels. This point emphasizes part of the issue in 1 above.
The project is one that has been assembled from diverse ownerships. The resulting geometric has
“outparcels” and somewhat angular interfaces with adjacent properties. There needs to be adequate
mobility access and natural system continuation regardless of ownerships to ensure system
performance.

Wayne Daltry, FAICP
Director, Smart Growth
239-335-2840

fx -335-2262

From: Gaither, Wayne

Sent: Friday, January 26, 2007 1:45 PM

To: tpnfmfd@yahoo.com; Bergquist, W.; Campbell, George G.; Collins, Donna Marie ; Daltry, Wayne E.;
Eckenrode, Peter J.; Hansen, Hans C.; Houck, Pamela E.; Lavender, James H.; Liddblad, Ellen; Loveland,

1/31/2007



DEeLisI FITZGERALD, INC.

Planning - Engineering - Project Management

September 26, 2007

Mr. Brent Cunningham

Senior Planner
Lee County Department of Community Development

Division of Planning
PO Box 398
Fort Myers, FL. 33902-0398

Re: North River Village Large Scale Plan Amendement
CPA2006-12

Dear Mr. Cunningham:

In response to the meeting with Lee County Staff held on Friday, September 21, 2007
in regard to the above referenced project, please find the following addendum to the

first sufficiency response:

1. Revised Future Land Use Map
2. Letter of Service Availability from Lee County Solid Waste

3. Boundary Sketch and Description

If you should require any additional information, please contact our office.

Principal

Daniel DeLisi, AICP J

YE])

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENS

DD/vd Y SEP 26 2007
Project No.: 21023

1500 Royal Palm Square Blvd, Suite 101 - Fort Myers,FL33919 + 239-418-0691 + 239-418-0692 fax



=l LEE COUNTY

SOUTHWEST FLORIDA
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Bob Janes
District One

A. Brian Bigelow
District Two

Ray Judah

District Three September 20, 2007
Tammy Hall
Distrct Four Mr. Daniel DeLisi,AICP
Frark Mann DelLisi Fitzgerald, Inc.
. 1500 Royal Palm Square Blvd.
Countyanager  Suite 101
Fort Myers, FL 33919

David M. Owen
County Attorney

Diana M. Parker SUBJECT: North River Village — Project # 21023

County Hearing
Examiner

Dear Mr.DeLisi:

The Lee County Solid Waste Division is capable of providing solid waste collection service
for the project known as North River Village through our franchised hauling contractors.
Disposal of the solid waste from this development will be accomplished at the Lee County
Resource Recovery Facility and the Lee-Hendry Regional Landfill. Plans have been made,
allowing for growth, to maintain long-term disposal capacity at these facilities.

The Solid Waste Ordinance (05-13, Section 21) and the Lee County Land Development
Code, Chapter 10, Section 10-261 have requirements for providing on-site space for
placement and servicing of certain multi-family and commercial solid waste containers.
Please review these requirements when planning the project. Additionally, please review the
Solid Waste Ordinance (05-13, Section 2) which defines those residential dwelling units that
are eligible to receive curbside residential collection service. If you have any questions,
please call me at (239) 338-3302.

Sincerely,

A FA /
[/ )
William T. Newman ”
Operations Manager

Solid Waste Division

cc: Brent Cunningham

P.0O.Box 398, Fort Myers, Florida 33902-0398 (239) 335-2111
Internet address http://www.lee-county.com

@ Recycled Paper AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY AFFIRMATIVE ACTION EMPLOYER
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'PROPOSED FUTURE LAND USE MAP

NORTH RIVER VILLAGE

@ 'LEE COUNTY/

DELISI FITZGERALD
PROJECT MANAGEMENT, LLC

Planning - Engineering - Project M

1500 Royal Palm Square Blvd, Suite 101
Fort Myers, FL 33919
239-418-0691 - 239-418-0692 fax
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PARCEL 1

LINE TABLE LINE TABLE
LINE BEARING LENGTH LINE BEARING LENGTH
L1 S 89'56'03” E| 602.25 L35 5 89727722" W 96.39
L2 S 0023307 w| 664.44 L36 |N 88'02'40" W 570+
L3 S 20°30°03" W[ 299.99 L37 N 01°30'00" W 223.42
L4 N 00'2539" £ 635.16 L38 S 8818'00" E 515+
L5 N 89'44'46" W| 668.82 L39 |SOUTHEASTERLY 239+
L6 S 00726'30" W| 634.34 L40 N 88°02°40" W 300.55
L7 S 71°02'39" W 400+ L41 N 8802'40" W 1326 =+
L8 N 48°07'32" £| 271% L42 S 88°02'40" E 22.77
L8 N 42710°28" wi 184.68 L43 S 01'30'00" E £85.35
L10 N 03°39'28" W 86.00 L44 N 01°30'00" W 1394.00
L11 N 44'51'32" E| 140.42 L45 S 01'30'00" E 110+
L12 N 48'54'32" E| 266.81 L46 S 01'30'00" E 278+
L13 N 37'57'32" E| 235.27 L47 [N 895013" W 134.27
L14 N 28°50'32" E| 219.46 L48  |S 15°00°00" E 86.58
L15 N 14'59’28" w| 137.17 L49 NB6'57'52"W 51.84
L16 S 75°00'32" W 1855 L50 N62°43'21"W 3497
L17 N 1459'28" w| 52.93 L51 N7107 29w 1046
L18 N 44°36'28" W| 466.55 L52 N75°06'06"W 54.64
L19 N 29°51'28" w| 128.58 153 N53°48'48"W 60.20
L20 N 24'51'32” E| 318.05 L54 N40"54'01"W 33.01
L21 N 1327'58" W 41+ L55 N46°00"13"W 43.84
L22 N 00'20'53" E 73+ L56 N32°06°30"W 30.67
L23 S 00°24'00" W| 734.91 L57 N28°21°08"W 39.90
L24 S 77°07°08" W] 213.76 L58 N12744'14"W 39.18
L25 S 87°00°19” W[ 1130.39 L59 NO8'55'07"W 28.95
L26 N 00724'00” E| 849.19 L60 NOB'5Q'33"W 34.61
L27 S 89°40'33" E| 1336.45 L61 NO3 48'34"W 29.62
L28 S 00°24'33" wW| 859.04 L62 N24"12'33"W 91.43
L29 S 87°00'19" w| 140.39 L63 N47°24'086"W 64.61
L30 S 56°47°09” W| 672.42 L64 N17°16’52"w 28.03
L31 N 3312'35" w| 20865
L32 N"00°51'18" W] 1064.98
L33 S 89'40'33” E| 839.08
L34 S 00723'30" w| 13118
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ENGINEERING

September 28, 2006

DESCRIPTION

PARCEL 1
LYING IN SECTIONS 16,17, 18,19 & 20
TOWNSHIP 43 SOUTH, RANGE 26 EAST
LEE COUNTY, FLORIDA

A tract or parcel of land lying in Sections 16, 17, 18, 19 & 20, Township 43 South, Range 26
East, Lee County, Florida, described 